
Please ask for Rachel Appleyard
Direct Line: 01246 345277
Fax:  01246 345252
Email:  democratic.services@chesterfield.gov.uk

NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE DECISION TO BE MADE

The following Executive Decisions are due to be made by the LEADER on 
FRIDAY, 5 JULY 2019.

1.   Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships (R000L) (Pages 3 - 60)

Reports relating to the decision(s) to be taken are attached to this notice, unless 
they contain confidential or exempt information. A meeting will not necessarily 
take place when the decision is made. Please contact Democratic Services for 

more information.

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



   

For publication 

 

Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships 

 

For publication  

 

 

1.0 Purpose of report 

 

1.1 To enable the Leader of the Council to make a final decision on 

Chesterfield Borough Council’s membership of either Derby 

Derbyshire Nottingham Nottinghamshire (D2N2) Local 

Enterprise Partnership (LEP) or Sheffield City Region (SCR) LEP.  

 

2.0 Recommendations 

 

2.1 That Chesterfield Borough Council remains a member of D2N2 

LEP and relinquishes its membership of SCR LEP. 

 

2.2 That Chesterfield Borough Council remains a non-constituent 

member of SCR Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA). 

 

2.3 That the Leader of the Council notifies the Secretary of State for 

Housing, Communities and Local Government, and the Chairs 

 

Meeting: 

 

 

Leader of the Council 

Date: 

 

5 July 2019 

Cabinet portfolio: 

 

Leader of the Council 

Report by: 

 

Chief Executive 

 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

of D2N2 and SCR LEPs of Chesterfield Borough Council’s 

decisions. 

 

2.4 That the change to Chesterfield Borough Council’s membership 

status at SCR LEP takes effect from 1 April 2020. 

 

2.5 That the Leader of the Council advises full Council on 17 July 

2019 of the reasons behind the decisions made. 

 

3.0 Background 

 

3.1 At a meeting of full Council on 27 February, 2019 members 

received and considered a detailed report (attached at 

Appendix A) on HM Government’s July 2018 review of Local 

Enterprise Partnerships 

(www.gov.uk/government/publications/strengthened-local-

enterprise-partnerships). 

 

3.2 Members noted, in particular, the Secretary of State for 

Housing, Communities and Local Government’s requirement 

for all businesses and communities within particular 

geographies to be represented from 1 April 2020 by one LEP. 

This contrasts with the position that has existed since 2013 

across many parts of England where the businesses and 

communities of particular local authority areas have been 

represented by two or more LEPs. This has been the case in 

Chesterfield borough, where our businesses and communities 

have been represented by both D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP. 

 

3.3 In short, the Secretary of State will no longer allow the 

geographies of two LEPs to overlap. 

 

3.4 Members also noted the Secretary of State’s threat … (a) to 

withhold payment of additional capacity funding to LEPs that 

fail to comply with the requirement to remove overlaps (a 

threat which James Brokenshire MP has seen through; D2N2 

and SCR LEPs did not receive their full allocations of capacity 

Page 4

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/strengthened-local-enterprise-partnerships
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/strengthened-local-enterprise-partnerships


 

funding in 2018/19) and of far greater significance (b) to reduce 

the value of post-Brexit funding allocations (UK Shared 

Prosperity Fund) to non-compliant LEPs. 

 

3.5 On 27 February 2019, CBC’s preferred position was to remain 

as a member of both D2N2 and SCR LEPs and also as a non-

constituent member of SCR MCA. 

 

3.6 Members, however, recognised the fluid and dynamic nature of 

the matter at hand, with the Leader of the Council and Chief 

Executive (CEO) engaged in multiple conversations with key 

stakeholders (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government [MHCLG], HM Government’s Cities and Local 

Growth Unit1, D2N2 and SCR LEPs, Derbyshire County Council 

(DCC) and neighbouring district councils) and the Leader of the 

Council under growing pressure for CBC to come to a final 

decision. 

 

3.7 For the Leader of the Council to come to that final decision, the 

report to full Council also referenced the need for further 

clarity to be sought on a number of matters. These were: 

 

a) Governance – what positions of authority and influence 

would CBC (through the offices of the Leader of the Council 

and CEO) hold at D2N2 LEP or SCR LEP post 1 April 2020? 

b) Transitional arrangements – how would D2N2 LEP and 

SCR LEP ensure that CBC, its businesses and communities 

suffer no detriment post CBC’s decision to run with 

membership of only one of the two LEPs? This would apply 

to not only projects and programmes to which LEP funding 

had previously been allocated but equally to those in 

pipeline pending final LEP decisions. 

c) Collaboration – due to the overlapping nature of 

Chesterfield borough’s functional economic geography, CBC 

would want to know how the two LEPs would in the future 

look to collaborate (and engage CBC) in key activities and 
                                                           
1
 Cities and Local Growth Unit: Government’s Local Growth Team – a partnership between the Department for 

Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy and the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 

Page 5



 

programmes, for example, the design and development of 

the LEPs’ respective Local Industrial Strategies. 

d) Enterprise Zone Business Rates – should CBC choose to 

relinquish its membership of SCR LEP, what status would the 

Markham Vale Enterprise Zone (EZ) have at D2N2 LEP and 

what options would be available to CBC, as billing authority, 

to determine the future allocation of business rates growth 

arising from eligible developments within the EZ? 

 

4.0 Further evidence 

 

 HM Government’s position 

 

4.1 MHCLG’s position hasn’t changed. In his 2 April 2019 letter to 

D2N2 and SCR LEP Chairs (attached at Appendix B), Jake Berry 

MP and MHCLG Minister of State writes … “the Government 

remains clear that overlaps reduce accountability, simplicity and 

clarity across the whole network of LEPs and … should be 

removed”. 

 

4.2 Jake Berry MP, however, goes further … “in light of … the fact 

that county councils hold responsibility for infrastructure, 

economic development and transport … the cleanest solution is for 

all five districts in Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire to be in the 

same LEP as the county councils”.  

 

4.3 This further statement resonates with the 9 January 2019 

opinions of the Cities and Local Growth Unit’s Area Directors 

(East Midlands and South East Midlands and Yorkshire, Humber 

and North East)2 that if CBC resolved to leave DCC’s LEP of 

choice, i.e. D2N2 LEP, an exceptionally good business case 

would need to be made; in particular, there would need to be 

clarity on how CBC and DCC would continue to discharge their 

statutory responsibilities without detriment to their shared 

                                                           
2
 On 9 January 2019, the Leader of the Council hosted a meeting at Chesterfield Town Hall, which had been 

requested by the Leader of Bassetlaw District Council, involving the Cities and Local Growth Unit’s Area 

Directors, the Chairs and Chief Officers of D2N2 and SCR LEPs  and the Leaders and CEOs of Bassetlaw, 

North East Derbyshire, Bolsover and Derbyshire Dales District Councils 

Page 6



 

businesses and communities, and DCC would need to be 

supportive of CBC relinquishing its membership of D2N2 LEP. 

 

4.4 In his 2 April 2019 letter, Jake Berry MP also re-affirms MHCLG’s 

belief that CBC could and should remain a non-constituent 

member of SCR MCA. This is viewed as key to ensuring that 

D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP continue to collaborate across 

administrative boundaries on matters of strategy, policy and 

practice where their respective interests are aligned, for 

example, integrated rail strategy, HS2, strategic road networks. 

 

 Other district / borough councils in the D2N2 / SCR overlap 

 

4.5 The 2 May 2019 local elections resulted in changes of political 

control and / or of leaders at North East Derbyshire, Bolsover 

and Derbyshire Dales District Councils. However, there is no 

new evidence to suggest that the ‘in principle’ positions of these 

councils, as articulated in their 29 January 2019 letters to the 

Chairs’ of D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP, and James Brokenshire MP, 

MHCLG Secretary of State, and also that of Bassetlaw District 

Council have changed. All four wish to remain members of 

D2N2 LEP and non-constituent members of SCR MCA.  

 

4.6 On 4 June 2019, the new Leader of North East Derbyshire 

District Council (NEDDC) also agreed to take up the Derbyshire 

district / borough council representative role on the main D2N2 

LEP board. Such a step would not have been taken if NEDDC 

was minded to remain with SCR LEP and relinquish its 

membership of D2N2 LEP. 

 

4.7 NEDDC’s position presents a particular challenge as it means 

that Chesterfield borough would not have a contiguous border 

with South Yorkshire. At the afore-mentioned 9 January 2019 

meeting with the Cities and Local Growth Unit, the Area 

Directors concluded that it would be difficult to envisage a 

situation where CBC remained a member of SCR LEP were 

Page 7



 

NEDDC to resolve to remain with D2N2 LEP (which is evidently 

the case based on their Leader’s recent decision). 

 

 D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP  

 

4.8 Whilst the obligation is on the Chairs’ of D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP 

to come forward … “with considered proposals on geographies 

which best reflect real functional economies and remove overlaps” 

… it is clear that such proposals can only be finalised when CBC 

and the other district councils confirm their respective 

positions. 

 

4.9 CBC is coming under increasing pressure from both LEP Chairs’ 

to exercise its choice in the matter. D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP are 

both currently developing their respective Local Industrial 

Strategies without the benefit of the additional capacity funding 

that has been made available for this purpose to other LEPs, 

and both are also acutely aware of the Secretary of State’s 

threat to reduce the value of post-Brexit funding allocations to 

non-compliant LEPs. It wouldn’t be a good position for CBC to 

find itself in were the funding allocations to both LEPs cut 

because of its intransigence to make a decision. 

 

4.10 The two LEP Chairs’ (and their CEOs’) have taken slightly 

different approaches in their more recent engagement 

conversations with CBC. SCR LEP had originally taken the 

standpoint of objecting to the requirement for the removal of 

overlaps but understandably this resistance has waned in the 

face of MHCLG’s resolve to see the matter through. SCR LEP has 

therefore sought to respect CBC’s sovereignty to come to an 

informed decision which best reflects the interests of its 

businesses and communities … ‘it is over to you … you tell us 

what you want to do’. 

 

4.11 In contrast, D2N2 LEP has sought to more actively engage CBC 

as evidenced in the following paragraphs (particularly 4.13, 4.22 

and 4.23). 

Page 8



 

4.12 At full Council on 27 February 2019, members were advised 

that the only seat available at that time to the Leader of the 

Council within D2N2 LEP’s proposed governance arrangements 

was the recently established D2N2 Leaders’ Forum, a quarterly 

informing and consulting meeting environment where the 

Chair meets with the Leaders of all 19 councils that make up 

the D2N2 LEP geography. 

 

4.13 On 4 June 2019, this position changed. The Leader of the 

Council has now been invited, alongside the Leader of Erewash 

Borough Council, to become a member of the D2N2 LEP 

Infrastructure Investment Board (IIB). Outside of the main LEP 

Board, which the Leader of the Council would probably have 

been appointed to if the political balance across Derbyshire’s 

post-election district / borough council geography had favored 

Labour, the IIB is D2N2 LEP’s main decision-making board; it is 

the Board where most funding allocation decisions are made. 

For reference, CBC’s CEO has also been invited to join D2N2 

LEP’s new Innovation Board. 
 

4.14 Whilst the Leader of the Council would continue to sit on the 

main LEP Board at SCR and be appointed to one of the sub-

boards (as would CBC’s CEO) if CBC chose SCR LEP over D2N2 

LEP, it is evident that the power base at SCR has now largely 

shifted from the LEP to the MCA. This is consistent with other 

MCA geographies. It is also apparent and, indeed, 

understandable that Mayor Dan Jarvis’s priority is to his South 

Yorkshire constituents; and so whilst he maintains a strong 

interest in the affairs of Chesterfield borough and is welcoming 

of CBC’s involvement at SCR MCA, the Mayor’s sphere of activity 

is increasingly limited to that geography.  

 

4.15 The Leaders of the South Yorkshire councils have also made it 

clear, in informal meeting environments, that the non-

constituent councils would not have access to the SCR 

devolution deal. The deal, which CBC’s Leader and CEO helped 

to write and negotiate in October 2015, looks close to finally 

being agreed; however, as it stands Chesterfield borough 

Page 9



 

would not benefit from the devolution of powers and / or the 

£900 million of gain share funding that HM Government has 

committed to allocate to SCR MCA over the next 30 years. 

 

4.16 There is also a significant risk that the SCR LEP and MCA could, 

from 2022, become part of a ‘One Yorkshire’ construct. 

Barnsley and Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Councils (MBCs) 

have continued to press HM Government for freedom to take 

such a path as part of the ‘horse-trading’ that has gone on 

around implementing the SCR devolution deal. In this regard, it 

does now appear that HM Government has conceded on this 

point, i.e. subject to Barnsley MBC and Doncaster MBC signing 

up to the October 2015 deal alongside Sheffield and 

Rotherham councils, the former will have the freedom to self-

determine their respective futures in 2022 (see James 

Brokenshire MP’s 7 May 2019 letter, which is attached at 

Appendix C). 

 

4.17 Mayor Jarvis is equally supportive of a future ‘One Yorkshire’ 

approach to devolution.  

 

4.18 CBC views becoming part of a ‘One Yorkshire’ approach as a 

step too far, and has informally communicated this position at 

both SCR Leader and CEO meetings.  

 

4.19 If CBC was to remain a member of SCR LEP and relinquish its 

membership of D2N2 LEP, there is therefore a good chance 

that we would be leaving in two years’ time; where upon we are 

unlikely to be warmly received back at D2N2 LEP having 

rejected the positive advances that are currently being made. 

 

4.20 At the time of writing, CBC has only one funding application in 

the SCR LEP / MCA pipeline, i.e. our Autumn 2018 submission 

for skills capital funding to support the construction of the new 

Derbyshire Rail Industry Innovation Vehicle (DRIIVe) at Barrow 

Hill roundhouse. 

 

Page 10



 

4.21 CBC’s original submission was for a sum of £8.6 million. 

However, the current pipeline shows a provisional commitment 

of just £2 million. This is in the main due to the SCR skills capital 

fund being over-subscribed. Whilst CBC’s officers will continue 

to make the case to SCR LEP for the funding, CBC’s stance on 

LEP geography is likely to have a bearing on the final decision; 

i.e. … ‘go with D2N2 LEP and questions will inevitably be asked 

as to whether SCR LEP should allocate skills capital funding for 

the DRIIVe project’. 

 

4.22 This had been a significant concern for CBC as D2N2 LEP had 

confirmed that all of its external funds were fully committed. 

However, there has been a change in recent weeks. D2N2 LEP 

has now announced that a new ‘call for proposals’ will be 

launched this Autumn and CBC encouraged to make an 

application for D2N2 LEP funds to support the DRIIVe project.  

 

4.23 There has also been a noticeable shift towards D2N2 LEP and 

the East Midlands in terms of where CBC has sought to access 

new external funding. Examples include:  
 

(a) Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) funding – East Midlands 

Councils has led on a consortium bid for £100 million HIF 

investment. The Chesterfield component, which has been 

formulated in concert with DCC, is a £7.8 million ‘ask’ for 

funding to support construction of the new railway 

station approach road. 

b) Local Growth Fund (LGF) Round 3 funding – at the 

invitation of D2N2 IIB, CBC has now submitted a Strategic 

Outline Business Case for £2.4 million from the Strategic 

HS2 Sites LGF programme. The proposition in the 

Business Case is in two parts:  

(i) to engage with key landowners and acquire specific 

sites for re-development in proximity to Chesterfield 

railway station; and 

Page 11



 

 (ii) to establish a joint venture with the owners of a 

priority site within the same corridor, again for re-

development. 

(c) Chesterfield Staveley Regeneration Route (CSRR) – DCC 

has submitted an Expression of Interest through Midlands 

Connect to the Large Local Majors Fund to support 

construction of the new £90 million (est.) CSRR. Our 

understanding is that Midlands Connect will make its 

decision at the end of June with regards to whether to 

recommend the CSRR to the Department for Transport 

for further review and consideration.  

 

Derbyshire County Council (DCC) 

 

4.24 Post the ‘abrasive’ public campaigning and counter-

campaigning that went on in 2016 and the High Court 

judgement handed down early 2017 with regards CBC’s 

ambition to achieve full member status at SCR MCA, CBC and 

DCC have sought to forge a new working relationship; which 

acknowledges that the former cannot deliver on its £2 billion 

plus growth plans (inclusive of HS2 related investment) without 

the latter’s full co-operation and engagement. 

 

4.25 The two councils have made good progress, as evidenced by 

the collaborative working that has been needed to bring 

forward the external funding applications referenced in 

paragraph 4.23 above. CBC was also very grateful for DCC’s 

support, at member and officer level, with our location ‘pitch’ to 

Talgo. To further consolidate this relationship, CBC and DCC are 

now looking to establish a joint growth unit to accelerate the 

pace of delivery of Chesterfield borough’s key regeneration 

projects, including Waterside, Peak Resort, Northern Gateway, 

CSRR and Chesterfield HS2 Station Master-plan. 

 

4.26 If CBC was to resolve to run with SCR LEP and not D2N2 LEP, it 

would be reasonable to expect DCC to de-prioritise some of the 

afore-mentioned projects and activities in favour of working 

Page 12



 

with other Derbyshire district / borough councils. Given the 

good progress and standing of the two councils’ current 

working relationship and the ‘real’ potential of a joint growth 

unit to accelerate the pace of delivery on the ground, it could 

therefore be viewed as detrimental to the interests of our 

businesses and communities for CBC to remain with SCR LEP. 

 

 Collaborative working and transitional arrangements 

 

4.27 CBC is also encouraged by the work that D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP 

are currently taking forward with regards to how the two LEPs 

propose to continue to collaborate post the final decisions of 

the 5 district / borough councils that sit in the overlapping 

geography. A draft collaborative agreement (attached at 

Appendix D) has been prepared, which commits the two LEPs 

to co-operate over such matters as the development of Local 

Industrial Strategies. This is considered essential irrespective of 

CBC’s final decision. CBC would want to continue to be involved 

in the future design and development of the key strategies of 

both LEPs; acting in the best interests of Chesterfield borough’s 

businesses and communities who are largely uninterested in 

and unconstrained by matters of overlapping geography. 
 

4.28 The draft collaborative agreement also helpfully defines which 

of the two LEP’s would be accountable for the future 

monitoring of projects and programmes that have already 

benefitted from LEP funding, i.e. where SCR funds have been 

allocated (for example, for Chesterfield Waterside, Northern 

Gateway and Peak Resort) SCR LEP would continue in 

perpetuity to monitor outputs and outcomes and enforce any 

claw back provisions, as appropriate; similarly D2N2 LEP would 

fulfil similar accountabilities in respect of any previously 

allocated D2N2 funds (for example, those for the University of 

Derby’s St Helena campus and Markham Vale). 

 

  

Page 13



 

 Enterprise Zone Business Rates 

 

4.29 HM Government’s Cities and Local Growth Unit have now 

issued advice to CBC on the matter of EZ business rates. It is 

clear that if CBC resolves to remain with D2N2 LEP and 

relinquish its membership of SCR LEP, Markham Vale’s standing 

as an EZ endures, as primary legislation would be required to 

change its designation.  

 

4.30 It is also clear that CBC, as billing authority, ultimately has the 

right to determine how the business rates uplift from the 

Markham Vale EZ is allocated post April 2020 through 2037. 

 

4.31 CBC, however, must have regards to HM Government policy, 

which states that … “all Enterprise Zone business rates growth 

should be retained by the local area, to support local economic 

priorities and ensure that Enterprise Zone growth is reinvested 

locally”. 

 

4.32 To date CBC has complied with this policy through pass-porting 

in full all business rates growth arising from Markham Vale EZ 

to SCR LEP. This has been the policy position of all SCR councils 

whose geographies benefit from EZ sites (i.e. Sheffield, 

Barnsley and Rotherham councils). CBC has, however, 

negotiated with SCR LEP and MCA a policy change in the 

current financial year 2019/20 where any business rates growth 

above £1 million is rebated to the billing authority. This means 

that CBC stands to benefit from a one-off rebate of £890k in 

2019/20 on the basis that the business rates growth from 

Markham Vale EZ is forecast to be £1.89 million. 

 

4.33 Whilst CBC ‘holds the pen’ on this matter, if the council did 

resolve to remain with SCR LEP, it is likely that the current pass-

porting arrangements would be expected to continue. In light 

of the informal stance taken by the South Yorkshire councils on 

the SCR devolution deal, i.e. that CBC would not benefit from 

the devolution of powers or the gain share funding, it is 

Page 14



 

doubtful whether CBC would want to continue to pass-port £1 

million each and every financial year to SCR LEP through 2037. 

 

4.34 CBC therefore finds itself in the position of being able to self-

determine its future position on this particular matter; though 

it would need to evidence to the satisfaction of MHCLG and 

D2N2 LEP that all retained EZ business rates growth arising 

from Markham Vale EZ would be reinvested locally and 

defrayed on local economic priorities. Whilst arguments are 

likely to be put forward for some of the business rates growth 

to be pass-ported to D2N2 LEP to reflect the sentiment within 

HM Government’s original EZ policy prospectus, CBC believes a 

strong case exists for the whole sum to be retained to support 

spend on local economic priorities, including funding of the 

afore-mentioned joint growth unit and prudential borrowing of 

capital for investment in new infrastructure projects and 

programmes. 

 

4.35 Assuming negotiations with D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP on the 

matter of EZ business rates can be concluded through the 

summer months, it is proposed to prepare a report for the 

October 2019 meeting of Council that enables members to 

consider and agree a new policy for dealing with business rates 

growth arising from developments within the Markham Vale EZ.  

 

4.36 It is also proposed that Council on 17 July 2019 considers and 

approves a recommendation from the 16 July 2019 meeting of 

CBC’s Joint Cabinet and Employment and General Committee 

with regards to funding of the afore-mentioned joint growth 

unit with DCC. 

 

Page 15



 

5.0 Risk management 

 
 Remain with D2N2 LEP and relinquish membership of SCR LEP 
  

Description of the 

Risk 

Impact Likeli-

hood 

Mitigating Action Impact Likeli-

hood 

Loss of influence in 

LEP decision-

making meetings 

High  High CBC (Leader) appointed 

to D2N2 LEP IIB; also CEO 

to D2N2 Innovation 

Board 

 

CBC’s statutory right to 

continue to attend SCR 

MCA 

High Low 

Loss of access to 

SCR skills capital 

funding for DRIIVe 

project 

High High CBC will continue to 

make case for SCR skills 

capital funding 

 

CBC to apply to new 

D2N2 LEP ‘call for 

projects’ (Autumn 2020) 

 

CBC to consider using EZ 

business rates growth as 

revenue stream against 

which to borrow capital 

to fund DRIIVe project 

High  Medium 

Loss of influence 

over design and 

development of 

key SCR strategies 

High High Effective implementation 

of D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP 

collaboration agreement 

giving CBC right and 

opportunity to influence 

design and development 

of key future D2N2 LEP 

and SCR LEP strategies 

High Medium 

Loss of certainty 

over management 

of previously 

allocated LEP funds 

High Medium Effective implementation 

of D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP 

collaboration agreement 

giving respective LEPs 

management control 

over previously allocated 

LEP funds  

High Low 

Page 16



 

 

Remain with SCR LEP and relinquish membership of D2N2 LEP 

Description of the 

Risk 

Impact Likeli-

hood 

Mitigating Action Impact Likeli-

hood 

Loss of control 

over business rates 

growth arising 

from Markham 

Vale EZ 

High High SCR LEP rebate policy 

agreed for 2019/20 

 

Primary legislation 

required to de-designate 

MV EZ; not HM 

Government priority 

 

CBC as billing authority 

has right to determine 

future allocation of 

business rates growth 

post April 2020 (subject 

to evidencing to the 

satisfaction of MHCLG 

and D2N2 LEP that 

growth would be 

reinvested locally and on 

local economic priorities) 

High Low 

Description of the 

Risk 

Impact Likeli-

hood 

Mitigating Action Impact Likeli-

hood 

Loss of influence in 

LEP decision-

making meetings 

High  High CBC (Leader) appointed 

to SCR LEP Board and 

Leader and CEO to other 

key sub-boards 

 

CBC’s statutory right to 

continue to attend SCR 

MCA 

High Low 

SCR MCA and LEP 

moves to be part of 

‘One Yorkshire’ 

structure  

High Medium No real mitigating 

action(s); this would be a 

step too far for CBC 

High  Medium 

Loss of influence 

over design and 

development of 

key D2N2 

strategies 

High High Effective implementation 

of D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP 

collaboration agreement 

giving CBC right to 

influence design and 

development of key 

future D2N2 LEP and SCR 

LEP strategies 

High Medium 

Page 17



 

 

Remain with both D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP 

Description of the 

Risk 

Impact Likeli-

hood 

Mitigating Action Impact Likeli-

hood 

Loss of certainty 

over management 

of previously 

allocated LEP funds 

High Medium Effective implementation 

of D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP 

collaboration agreement 

giving respective LEPs 

management control 

over previously allocated 

LEP funds  

High Low 

Loss of control 

over business rates 

growth arising 

from Markham 

Vale EZ 

High High SCR LEP rebate policy 

agreed for 2019/20 

 

Primary legislation 

required to de-designate 

MV EZ; not HM 

Government priority 

 

CBC as billing authority 

has right to determine 

future allocation of 

business rates (subject to 

evidencing to the 

satisfaction of MHCLG 

and SCR LEP that growth 

would be reinvested 

locally and on local 

economic priorities) 

 

CBC open to negotiation 

with SCR LEP to find 

optimal solution 

High Low 

Description of the 

Risk 

Impact Likeli-

hood 

Mitigating Action Impact Likeli-

hood 

HM Government 

withholds 

additional capacity 

funding in 2019 / 

20, made available 

to support LEPs 

with the design and 

development of 

their respective 

Local Industrial 

Strategies, from 

High High D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP 

could continue to make 

the case to HM 

Government that they 

have sought to comply 

with the LEP review but 

have no means of 

enforcing removal of the 

overlap where CBC or 

any other district / 

borough council declines 

High High 

Page 18



 

D2N2 LEP and SCR 

LEP and further 

penalises D2N2 

LEP and SCR LEP by  

reducing their 

respective post-

Brexit funding 

allocations 

to come to a view on the 

matter 

Loss of reputation 

with HM 

Government, D2N2 

LEP and SCR LEP 

(and other 

stakeholders) 

leading to 

withdrawal of 

support and 

funding for CBC’s 

priority growth 

activities 

High High CBC could continue to 

evidence case and 

arguments for retention 

of overlapping 

geography but would 

still be seriously 

disadvantaged in its 

ability to access funding 

to support its priority 

growth activities 

High High 

Loss of influence in 

LEP decision-

making meetings 

High High CBC (Leader) could 

continue to hold position 

on SCR LEP Board and 

the Leader and CEO on  

other key sub-boards 

 

CBC could continue to 

exercise its statutory 

right to continue to 

attend SCR MCA 

 

Invite for Leader to join 

D2N2 IIB would more 

than likely be withdrawn 

High High 

Loss of influence 

over design and 

development of 

key D2N2 and SCR 

strategies 

High  High Effective implementation 

of D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP 

collaboration agreement 

but CBC’s ability to 

influence the design and 

development of key 

future D2N2 and SCR 

strategies would be 

seriously undermined by 

its intransigence to make 

a decision, and place at 

risk future funding 

allocations 

High High 

Page 19



 

 

6.0 Other considerations 

 

Financial 

 

6.1 CBC currently pays an annual membership subscription of £4k 

to SCR LEP and MCA. This would continue to be paid on the 

basis of the recommendation that CBC remains a non-

constituent member of SCR MCA. 

 

6.2 A fuller narrative on CBC’s position with regards the specific 

matter of business rates growth arising from eligible 

developments within the Markham Vale EZ is already provided 

at paragraphs 4.29 to 4.36. In summary, CBC will:  

 

(a) pass-port £1m of business rates growth to SCR LEP in 

2019/20 and retain all growth above £1m for re-

investment locally and on local economic priorities; this 

accords with CBC’s current policy and SCR LEP’s / MCA’s 

recently approved SCR EZ business rates growth rebate 

policy; 

 

Description of the 

Risk 

Impact Likeli-

hood 

Mitigating Action Impact Likeli-

hood 

Loss of control 

over business rates 

growth arising 

from Markham 

Vale EZ 

High High SCR LEP rebate policy 

agreed for 2019/20 

 

Primary legislation 

required to de-designate 

MV EZ; not HM 

Government priority 

 

CBC as billing authority 

has right to determine 

future allocation of 

business rates growth 

post April 2020 (though 

the matter is likely to be 

subject to enhanced 

scrutiny by MHCLG and 

both LEPs) 

High Medium 

Page 20



 

(b) prepare a report for Council in October 2019 that enables 

members to consider and agree a new policy for dealing 

with EZ business rates growth; in this regard, a strong 

case will be made for all growth to be re-invested locally 

and defrayed on local economic priorities. 

 

6.3 If CBC remains a member of D2N2 LEP and relinquishes its 

membership of SCR LEP, it will no longer have the facility from 

1 April 2020 to continue to apply for relevant devolved funds 

from SCR LEP. This is because HM Government will discontinue, 

as of that date, its current practice of splitting CBC’s notional 

allocation(s) 50:50 between the two LEPs.   

 

Legal 

 

6.4 There are no legal reasons why the Leader of the Council 

cannot resolve to agree to the recommendations, as set out at 

sections 2.0 and 8.0 of this report. 

 

6.5 On 19 March 2019, members of the D2N2 LEP Board approved 

Articles of Association establishing the D2N2 LEP as a company 

limited by guarantee; this action gave effect to another of HM 

Government’s July 2018 LEP review requirements that all LEPs 

should adopt a legal personality with effect from 1 April 2019. 

CBC is named as one of 15 district councils to which the Articles 

of Association apply. 

 

6.6 CBC is also named as a non-constituent council in The Barnsley, 

Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield Combined Authority Order 

2014 and in sequential orders, and is therefore statutorily and 

constitutionally bound into the SCR MCA. As referenced at 

paragraph 4.4, Jake Berry MP in his 2 April 2019 to D2N2 LEP 

and SCR LEP Chairs also re-affirms MHCLG’s belief that CBC 

could and should remain a non-constituent member of SCR 

MCA post 1 April 2020. 

 

  

Page 21



 

Equalities 

 

6.7 HM Government, through James Brokenshire MP and Jake 

Berry MP, continues to emphasise that should D2N2 LEP and 

SCR LEP fail to comply with the requirement to remove 

overlaps, they will not receive their full allocations of additional 

capacity funding and risk receiving less funding than other LEPs 

when post-Brexit funding allocations are released. 

 

6.8 Such a loss of funding would inevitably have a negative impact 

on CBC’s communities, including those with protected 

characteristics, and equally have a similar impact on 

communities in all parts of D2N2 and SCR. It is therefore 

considered in the best interests of all D2N2 and SCR 

communities for CBC to come to an informed and considered 

view on this matter.  

 

6.9 Throughout CBC’s multi-year involvement in D2N2 LEP and SCR 

LEP, the optimisation of benefits for our communities, including 

those with protected characteristics has been a key 

consideration. As already referenced at paragraph 4.27, CBC 

would want to continue to be involved in the future design and 

development of the key strategies of both LEPs. CBC is 

therefore encouraged by the work that D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP 

are currently taking forward with regards to how the two LEPs 

propose to continue to manage the transition through to, and 

build collaborative arrangements from 1 April 2020. 

 

6.10 CBC will therefore continue to engage, at every opportunity, in 

the design and development of the joint D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP 

collaboration agreement to optimise the positive impacts and 

minimise the negative impacts for our communities. 

 

7.0 Alternative options and reasons for rejection 

 

7.1 CBC could choose to remain as a member of SCR LEP and SCR 

MCA and relinquish its membership of D2N2 LEP. However, this 

Page 22



 

option is rejected on the basis of the further detailed evidence 

provided in section 4.0 of the report. 

 

7.2 CBC could also choose to remain as a member of D2N2 LEP 

and SCR LEP. However, as has already been referenced, if CBC 

was to take such a stance it would be placing at serious risk the 

ability of the two LEPs to realise the full value of post-Brexit 

funding allocations to which they would otherwise be entitled; 

which is clearly not in the best interests of the borough’s 

businesses and communities or indeed of any businesses and 

communities located within the D2N2 and SCR geographies. 

 

8.0 Recommendations 

 

8.1 That Chesterfield Borough Council remains a member of D2N2 

LEP and relinquishes its membership of SCR LEP. 

 

8.2 That Chesterfield Borough Council remains a non-constituent 

member of SCR Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA). 

 

8.3 That the Leader of the Council notifies the Secretary of State for 

Housing, Communities and Local Government, and the Chairs 

of D2N2 and SCR LEPs of Chesterfield Borough Council’s 

decisions. 

 

8.4 That the change to Chesterfield Borough Council’s membership 

status at SCR LEP takes effect from 1 April 2020. 

 

8.5 That the Leader of the Council advises full Council on 17 July 

2019 of the reasons behind the decisions made. 

 

9.0 Reasons for recommendations 

 

9.1 To provide clarity on CBC’s position with regards HM 

Government’s LEP review and enable D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP to 

finalise their individual and collective submissions in terms of 

Page 23



 

demonstrating compliance with the review’s requirements for 

overlapping geographies to be removed. 

 

Glossary of Terms 

D2N2 Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham, 

Nottinghamshire 

SCR Sheffield City Region 

LEP Local Enterprise Partnership 

MCA Mayoral Combined Authority 

MHCLG Ministry of Housing, Communities and 

Local Government 

IIB Infrastructure Investment Board 

EZ Enterprise Zone 

HIF Housing Infrastructure Fund 

LGF Local Growth Fund 

CSRR Chesterfield Staveley Regeneration Route 

DRIIVe Derbyshire Rail Industry Innovation 

Vehicle 

 

Decision information 

 

Key decision number 883 

Wards affected All 

Links to Council Plan 

priorities 

1) Making Chesterfield a thriving 

borough 

2) Improving the quality of life 

for local people 

3) Delivering value for money 

services 
 

  

Page 24



 

Document information 

 

Report author Contact number/email 

Dr Huw Bowen 

Chief Executive 

 

01246 345308 

huw.bowen@chesterfield.gov.uk 

Background documents 

These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a 

material extent when the report was prepared. 

 

 

Appendices to the report 

Appendix A Council report: Strengthened Local Enterprise 

Partnerships [Council 27 February 2019] 

Appendix B Jake Berry MP and Minister of State for 

Housing, Communities and Local 

Government 2 April 2019 letter to Elizabeth 

Fagan, Chair, D2N2 LEP and James Muir, 

Chair, SCR LEP  

Appendix C James Brokenshire MP and Secretary of State 

for Housing, Communities and Local 

Government 7 May 2019 letter to SCR Mayor 

Dan Jarvis and Leaders of Barnsley, 

Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield councils 

Appendix D Draft D2N2 LEP and SCR LEP collaboration 

framework [SCR LEP Board meeting 20 May 

2019] 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



P
age 39



P
age 40



P
age 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



P
age 56



P
age 57



P
age 58



P
age 59



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships (R000L)
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	APPENDIX C
	appendix D


